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From:
Sent: 26 January 2024 10:34
To: localplan@york.gov.uk
Cc:
Subject: Consultation on the revised CIL Draft Charging Schedule
Attachments: Letter to City of York Council NJ 26.01.2024.pdf - signed.pdf; CIL representations 

March 2023(1.0).pdf

This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise 
the sender and know the content is safe. 

Good morning 
Please find aƩached our representaƟons on behalf of BriƟsh Sugar in relaƟon to the above consultaƟon. 
I enclose also for ease of reference our previous representaƟons of March 2023. 
Please can you confirm receipt of these. 
Regards 
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Rapleys LLP is registered as a Limited Liability Partnership in England and Wales. Registration No: OC308311 
Registered Office at Unit 3a The Incubator, Enterprise Campus, Alconbury Weald, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire, 
England, PE28 4XA 
A full list of Members is available on our website or at any of our offices during normal business hours. 
Regulated by RICS.  

Rapleys LLP operates an Environmental Management System which complies with the requirements of ISO 
14001:2004 Certificate No. EMS 525645 

This email is not intended, nor shall it form part of any legally enforceable contract and any contract shall only be 
entered into by way of an exchange of correspondence by each party's solicitor. Where this Email message is sent in 
connection with a contentious issue, the contents are Without Prejudice. 

This email has been scanned for email related threats and delivered safely by Mimecast. 
For more information please visit http://www.mimecast.com  
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Strategic Planning Policy Team 
City of York Council 
West Offices 
Station Rise 
York 
YO1 6GA 

p k

Our ref:  NJ/1119/114/3 
Date:  27 March 2023 

Dear  

   Y k   C        
R       

We write on behalf of our client, British Sugar Plc, to submit representations to the above CIL 
consultation. Please therefore find enclosed with this letter our formal representations. 

By way of background, British Sugar is the owner of the Former British Sugar site (the Site), 
Boroughbridge Road, York. The British Sugar site forms the substantial part of site ST1 (British Sugar 
/ Manor School) in the draft Local Plan. The British Sugar site and Manor School Site, together, are 
identified within draft Policy SS6 to deliver approximately 1,200 dwellings as part of a residential led 
mixed use development, incorporating significant community and neighbourhood facilities. 

British Sugar has worked with City of York Council (CYC) since the closure of the former British 
Sugar site in 2007 to progress its sustainable redevelopment for residential led mixed uses. British 
Sugar has secured outline and full planning permissions (see below) to enable the residential led 
mixed use development of the site and has recently commenced ground works on site. 

•  Outline planning permission (ref 15/00524/OUTM, Appeal Ref 3177821) for up to 1,100 
 residential units and associated community uses  

•  Full planning permission (ref 20/00774/FULM) for engineering works, remediation and 
 reclamation of the Site  

•  Full planning permission (ref 17/01072/FUL) for the construction of access roads at 
 Boroughbridge Road and Millfield Lane and across the Former Manor School site 

British Sugar remains committed to the delivery of the redevelopment of the Site and continues to 
work closely with Officers at City of York Council accordingly. 
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We trust that these representations will be taken into account in the further preparation of the draft 
CIL charging schedule. We wish to be notified of future updates to CIL by the Council and wish to 
participate in the CIL examination. We also reserve the right to provide further information, including 
supporting viability evidence, at or in advance of the CIL Examination. 

Yours sincerely, 

Consultant - Town Planning 
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evidence on site preparation costs at the British Sugar site identifies that there would 
be no headroom to provide for CIL. 

 
 Moreover, the justification for the identified ‘exception’ strategic sites in the charging 

schedule applies directly to the British Sugar site. Specifically, it is a large strategic site 
where the CIL rate could have an adverse impact on delivery and is a site that is 
supporting significant social infrastructure to the benefit of the City via a package of 
s106 obligations and contributions. These reasons for exception are therefore clearly 
applicable to the British Sugar site. 

 
13. In this respect, it is considered that there is clear justification for the inclusion of the British 

Sugar Strategic Site (ST1) within the list of ‘exception sites’ that includes other strategic 
sites which are identified as having a £0 per sqm recommended charge in Table 8.1 of the 
Viability Study. The British Sugar site ST1 should therefore be included within this list of 
‘exception sites’. 

u

1. No. As set out in our response to Q1 above, there is no site-specific CIL viability evidence 
prepared in respect of the British Sugar strategic site ST1. The Council’s reasoning for this 
is that the site benefits from an existing planning permission. 
 

2. However as currently drafted, the Draft Charging Schedule does not include site ST1 in the 
list of ‘excluded’ strategic sites, and therefore, should it become necessary to secure a new 
outline or full permission for the development of the ST1 site in future, it would be included 
with other strategic sites deemed capable of funding a £100psm rate for new residential 
floorspace within the Draft Charging Schedule, despite there being no relevant CIL viability 
assessment evidence to support or justify this position. 
 

3. The British Sugar site will provide significant social infrastructure, and the specific viability 
arrangements associated with the delivery of the site (including this extensive social 
infrastructure) is reflected in the bespoke viability mechanisms included within the s106 
obligations for the approved planning permission (Ref 15/00524/OUTM). 
 

4. In this respect, it is considered that there is clear justification for the inclusion of the British 
Sugar Strategic Site (ST1) within the list of ‘exception sites’ that includes other strategic 
sites identified as having a £0 per square m. charge in the Draft Charging Schedule. 
 

            d  p d   
  c n   n    
m   

1. No. See response to Question 1a and 2a above. 
 

        l     i  
           d  k    

    n  l  s       
g c    o f n  k  d t  o  

    ? 

1. Yes – see responses to Questions 1a, 2a above. 
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           o    
   p  o  d n      

g  

1. Yes – see responses to Questions 1a and 2 above.  

         C
i    o  w         

l                ?

1. We support the proposed agreement of project specific payment schedules for sites with 
overall CIL liabilities of £500,000 or more.  

         n      
        l   d     

opm t  m  e  d  p s    p  d   
R

   n   on         
 

1. N/A 

   n      n  

1. No 

   n    

1. The Viability Study 2022 refers at para 1.2 to previous viability assessment work undertaken 
on behalf of the Council. As set out in our response to Question 1 above, this information 
was prepared for the purpose of informing the draft Local Plan, and not specifically prepared 
for the purposes of informing the CIL Charging Schedule. In particular, reference is made to 
the ‘City of York Local Plan Viability Update Addendum’ (Ref HS/P2/M6/IR/1b App 2). This 
document was prepared on behalf of the Council during the Local Plan Examination and 
included an assessment of the impact of changes to the draft Local Plan that had taken 
place since the publication of the Porter 2018 sites, assessing the strategic sites (including 
British Sugar). It is noted that this document was prepared for the purposes of the Local 
Plan rather than the CIL consultation. In addition, consistent with Rapleys previous 
representations to the Local Plan viability evidence base (cited in our response to question 
1a above) it is not accepted that this document provides a correct approach to valuation of 
the British Sugar site, but rather, based on our detailed knowledge of the site, the 
conclusions and viability results shown in respect of the British Sugar site are not considered 
to be accurate. For this reason, this Local Plan evidence base material cannot be relied upon 
for the purposes of preparing the draft CIL Charging Schedule. 
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Strategic Planning Policy
City of York Council 
Directorate of Place 
West Offices 
Station Rise 
York  
Y01 6GA 

By email only to localplan@york.gov.uk 

Our ref NJ/1119/114/3 
Date 26 January 2024 
 

Dear Sir / Madam 

  k  – n  s     g   –  
 m  – pr     r h  

We write on behalf of our client, British Sugar Plc, to submit representations to the above 
consultation on the proposed modifications to the CIL draft charging schedule.  

British Sugar remains committed to facilitating the redevelopment of the British Sugar site and 
continues to work closely with officers at City of York (CYC) accordingly. 

The background and current planning framework for the British Sugar site was set out in our 
previous representations of 27 March 2023 (enclosed). Since that time, British Sugar has 
submitted a further ‘s73’ application for the British Sugar site (ref 23/02302/FUL) which seeks 
approval for minor amendments to the approved outline masterplan permission at the site, to 
enable its onward delivery. 

In terms of the consultation on the proposed modifications to the draft charging schedule, we 
to the proposed modifications. The reasons for this objection are set out below.

The previous version of the Draft Charging Schedule (December 2022), in effect, included the 
British Sugar Site (Strategic Site ST1) within the strategic sites to which the £100 per sq m CIL rate 
would be applicable. 

Our representations of March 2023 set out the reasons for objection to this position, and the clear 
justification for the inclusion of the British Sugar site within the list of strategic sites to which the 
£0 per sq m CIL rating should apply. 

Our previous representations have not however been reflected in the revised draft charging 
schedule.  

Rather, following correspondence with officers in the Strategic Policy Team to clarify the potential 
application of the revised draft charging schedule to the British Sugar site, it is understood that 
future applications and development on the site could be subject to the £200 per sq m rate 
identified for residential dwellings, given that the site is not specifically identified as one of the 
strategic sites that benefits from the lower ratings. 
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In effect therefore, the CIL rate that could be applied to future residential development at the 
British Sugar site has doubled since the December 2022 consultation, to £200 per sq m, as a 
result of the proposed modifications to the draft charging schedule currently being consulted on. 

However, as set out in our representations of March 2023, there was no evidence contained 
within the CIL Viability Study at that time to support the £100 per sq m rate proposed, and there is 
no assessment or evidence contained within the CYC CIL Viability Study Addendum Nov 2023 
(the evidence base document used to justify the revised draft charging schedule) that supports 
the doubling of the CIL rate applicable to the British Sugar site. 

Officers have confirmed in recent correspondence that they recognise that the viability position at 
the British Sugar site (as referenced in our March 2023 representations) would mean that an 
‘exceptional circumstances’ case could apply in respect of the application of the CIL rate in the 
future. However this is not considered to represent a justified or evidenced based approach to the 
preparation of the CIL charging schedule as it relates to the British Sugar site. 

Specifically therefore, we reiterate our representations made in March 2023, as follows: 

 The British Sugar site has not been specifically assessed within the CIL viability study (or 
the addendum), unlike other strategic sites.  

 
 The site-specific viability assessments of the British Sugar site that have been undertaken 

for the Council previously (by Peter Brett and Porter Economics) were done primarily for 
the purposes of informing the draft Local Plan, rather than the proposed CIL charging 
schedule. Rapleys has documented the serious concerns with the robustness and 
accuracy of these assessments in their previous representations to the draft Local Plan.  

 
 The justification given for not undertaking any site-specific viability assessment of the 

British Sugar site within the CIL Viability Study is that the site benefits from existing 
planning permissions (and therefore we understand that Officers have assumed that given 
these pre-CIL permissions, the British Sugar development will not be CIL liable).  
 

 Whilst it is accepted that there are arrangements in place for pre-CIL permissions, there 
remains the potential that amendments to the existing permissions, or indeed fresh 
permissions, become necessary to ensure the further implementation and completion of 
the development at the British Sugar site. These permissions could become CIL liable.  
 

 Despite not including any site specific assessment of the British Sugar site, it is by default 
included in the revised draft charging schedule as a site which would potentially be 
subject to a CIL rate of £200 psm. There is no evidence contained within the CIL viability 
study or addendum to support this approach. Indeed as demonstrated in our March 2023 
representations, the evidence on site preparation costs at the British Sugar site identifies 
that there would be no headroom to viably provide for CIL.  
 

 Moreover, the justification for the identified £0 rated ‘exception’ strategic sites in the draft 
charging schedule applies equally to the British Sugar site. Specifically, it is a large 
strategic site where the CIL rate could have an adverse impact on delivery and is a site 
that is supporting significant social infrastructure to the benefit of the City via a package 
of s106 obligations and contributions. The cited reasons for exception at other sites are 
therefore clearly and equally applicable to the British Sugar site.  

 
In this respect, it is considered that there is clear justification for the inclusion of the British Sugar 
Strategic Site (ST1) within the list of ‘exception sites’ which are identified as having a £0 per sqm 
CIL rate in the draft charging schedule. The British Sugar site ST1 should therefore be included 
within this list of ‘exception sites’.  
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We trust these representations will be fully taken into account in the further preparation of the CIL 
charging schedule. We wish to be notified of any future updates to the draft CIL by the Council 
and wish to reserve the right to participate in the CIL examination. 

In addition, at the time of writing we are awaiting a further response from the Strategic Policy 
Team in relation to our recent correspondence regarding this consultation. On this basis, we 
reserve the right to amend our representations, or make further comment, following receipt of this 
response, post the consultation deadline of 31st January 2024, as necessary.

Yours faithfully 

 
 

 
 






